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STATE OF MONTANA 
REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL ADDENDUM 

RFP NO. MSF 56 
TO BE OPENED: November 8, 2013 

TITLE: Collection Services 
 

ADDENDUM NO. 1 
 

 
To All Offerors: 

 
Attached are written questions received in response to this RFP.  These questions, along with 
MSF’s response, become an official amendment to this RFP. 

  
All other terms of the subject "Request for Proposal" are to remain as previously stated. 

 
Acknowledgment of Addendum: 

 
The offeror for this solicitation must acknowledge receipt of this addendum.  This page must be 
submitted at the time set for the proposal opening or the proposal may be disqualified from 
further consideration. 

 
I acknowledge receipt of Addendum No. 1 

 
Signed: ___________________________________ 

 
Company Name: ____________________________ 

 
Date: ______________________ 

 
Sincerely, 

 
 
 

Rene Silverthorne 
Procurement Officer 
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1.    Question 
Is this a one-time placement or would it be a monthly/bimonthly placement, etc.? 
 
Answer : We anticipate that placements would continue to be made on a monthly basis. 

2.    Question 
What is the average account balance overall? 
 

Answer  See section 1.1 of the RFP. 

3.    Question 
What is the breakdown the number of accounts per delinquent status and average balance of each category? 
 

Answer:  All accounts placed are at least 90 days past due.  The average balance is explained in Section 
1.1 of the RFP. 

4.    Question 
Please explain the in-house collection activity performed prior to placing the account for collection. 
 

Answer   Prior to placing the account State Fund will have sent multiple monthly invoices, policy 
cancellation notice, and possibly made phone calls in attempts to resolve the outstanding balance or to 
request information needed, such as payroll reports.  A letter is also sent by our legal department 
providing 10-days to respond prior to placement for external collections. 

5.    Question  
What percent of files placed for collection have working telephone numbers? 
 

Answer   This information is unknown.   

6.    Question  
What percent of the accounts are skips? 
 

Answer   This information is unknown. 
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7.    Question  
What liquidation rate do you expect for accounts placed in collection? 
 

Answer   It varies based on the type of accounts placed.  Past experience indicates that about 38% of 
what is placed is collected.  

8.    Question  
What is most important to you?  Please list in order of importance:  Recovery, Rate, and Service. 
 

Answer   Service, Recovery and Rate. 

9.    Question  
Will we be provided with the questions asked by other vendor participants as well as the RFP Requestor’s 
answers to the same?    
 

Answer Yes 

10.    Question  
Why is the contract out to bid at this time?  
 

Answer  State law provides that contracts let under an RFP are limited to seven years, and this time 
has expired.  Under Montana state law, State Fund is required to issue an RFP and seek new 
proposals at this time. 

11.    Question  
To how many vendors are you seeking to award a contract? 
 
Answer   Refer to section 1.1 of the RFP. 

12.    Question  
Are you currently outsourcing this work and what vendor is providing this service to you and how long have 
the incumbents been providing the requested services?  
 
Answer  Refer to Section 1.1; the incumbents have been providing services for at least 7 years. 
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13.    Question  
Will accounts be primary placements, not having been serviced by any other outside collection agency, 
and/or will you also be referring secondary placements? If so, should bidders provide proposed fees for 
secondary placements also?  
 
Answer  The majority of accounts will be primary placements.  Secondary placements are unlikely; 
however, the proposal should include the fee structure for secondary placements if it will be different 
than the standard fees.  

14.    Question  
Will the selected vendor be allowed to litigate balances exceeding a certain dollar amount on your behalf, 
with your explicit approval? 
 
Answer  Yes, see Section 3.1.1 and Appendix B of the RFP. 

15.    Question  
What is the total dollar value of accounts available for placement now by category, including any backlog? 
 
Answer  No backlog currently exists and the amount of placement varies by month.  As an example, 
for the month of October 2013 State Fund had $155,764 owed from 80 policyholder premium debt 
accounts and $703 owed from four overpayments to injured worker accounts that had our internal 
legal collection letter issued.  The placement with collection agency will depend on the amount of the 
debt owed and how many of those debtors fail to contact MSF to resolve the issue or make satisfactory 
payment arrangements.  

16.    Question  
What current contingency fees or other fees are currently being billed by any incumbent(s), by category? 
 
Answer  The collection fees range from 0% - 50% of the amounts collected depending on the amount, 
when it was referred to collections, when payment is received, and whether it was litigated.  The fees 
for litigated accounts range from 19% - 50%, these fees vary for each contractor and depend upon 
where the accounts are at in the litigation process as well as the amount of the debt and location of the 
debtor.  These fees and other fees are set forth in the contracts. 
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17.    Question  
What estimated or actual dollars were paid last year, last month, or last quarter to any incumbent(s)? 
 
Answer  For the fiscal year 2013 (July 1, 2012 – June 30, 2013) total estimated collection agency fees, 
including legal fees, made to all incumbents was $42,175.   

18.    Question  
What is the monthly or quarterly number of accounts expected to be placed with the vendor(s) by category?  
 
Answer  It varies, and can range from 0 to 70 accounts being placed in a monthly period.  The 
majority of the accounts placed are policyholder premium debt accounts.   
 

19.    Question  
What has been the historical rate of return or liquidation rate provided by any incumbent(s) for the last 3 
years, and/or what is anticipated or expected as a result of this procurement?  
 
Answer   The average rate of collection considering the last three years of placement activity (net of 
fees) is about 38%.  

20.    Question  
If applicable, will accounts held by any incumbent(s) or any backlog be moved to any new vendor(s) as a 
one-time placement at contract start up?  
 
Answer  No, any accounts currently with incumbents will remain with that incumbent.  State Fund 
does not have any backlog. 

21.    Question  
To what extent will the location of the bidder’s call center and/or corporate headquarters have a bearing on 
any award(s)?  
 
Answer  State Fund may select up to two proposals for contract award.  State Fund is interested in one 
of our contractors having an in-state presence for social acceptance purposes and for handling 
overpayments from injured workers and medical providers. 
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22.  5 1.1 Question  
How will placement data be sent to collection agency?   
 
Answer This will be dependent on how the collection agency can receive the data.  Currently, the 
individual information is entered on each collection agency’s website. 

23.  23 3.1.2 Question  
On Direct payments received at MT ST Fund subsequent to placement with an agency does MT ST Fund 
prefer to be invoiced for the collection fee due the agency or for the agency to net out the earned fee on those 
direct payments from monies the agency has received from other payments at the agency and summarize all 
transactions on the monthly remit? 
 
Answer  State Fund requires invoicing of the collection fee due to the agency when direct payment is 
received by State Fund. 

24.  5 1.1 Question  
What was the total amount collected by the incumbent third party collection contractors for Fiscal Year 
ending 6/30/2013? 
 
Answer   As of September 30, 2013 the total amount collected was $126,241 for accounts placed in the 
fiscal year ending June 30, 2013. 

25.  5 1.1 Question  
What was the total amount collected by the incumbent contractors for non-litigation payments and for 
litigation payments for FY 2013? 
 
Answer  MSF does not have the data readily available to determine these amounts.   

26.  5 1.1 Question  
For litigation accounts, who pays the court filing fees and other costs related to litigation (MSF or the 
contractors)? 
 
Answer See Appendix B, page 22, section 3.8; other costs related to litigation should be included with 
response to section 5 and will be evaluated in the review process. 
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27.  5 1.1 Question  
What was the number of accounts authorized for legal during FY 2013? 
 
Answer  It varies, however MSF estimates that less than 10% of accounts placed are authorized for 
legal.   

28.  5 1.1 Question What is the current / past contracted contingency fee rate percentage for standard collections and for legal 
collections charged by each incumbent contractor? 
 
Answer  See the answer to question 16.   

29.  5 1.1 Question  What was the amount paid to collection service contractor(s) for FY 2013 in total and for each 
contractor? 
 
Answer  For the fiscal year 2013 (June 1, 2012 – July 31, 2013) total estimated collection agency fees, 
including legal fees, made to all incumbents was $42,175. 

30.    Question  
The rfp is only available as a pdf online. Is it possible to obtain a Word copy of the rfp? 
 
Answer  Yes, a Word version of the RFP can be provided by email request to the procurement officer.  

31.    Question  
Please confirm the due date for this procurement is 11/8/2013.’ 
 
Answer RFP response due date is November 8, 2013. 

32.    Question  
Why is the contract out to bid at this time? 
 
Answer   See the answer to question #10 

33.    Question  
When is the anticipated contract start date? 
 
Answer   January 1, 2014 
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34.    Question  
To how many vendors are you seeking to award a contract? 
 
Answer   Refer to section 1.1 of the RFP. 

35.    Question  
Have all options to extend the current contract been exercised? 
 
Answer  Yes 

36.    Question  
What is the total dollar value of accounts available for placement now by category, including any backlog? 
 
Answer  See the answer to question 15.  

37.    Question  
What is the total number of accounts available for placement now by category, including any backlog? 
 
Answer  See the answer to question 15.  

38.    Question  
What is the average age of accounts at placement (at time of award and/or on a going-forward basis), by 
category? 
 
Answer  The age of accounts placed are typically between 90 to 180 days old.  

39.    Question  
What estimated or actual dollars were paid last year, last month, or last quarter to any incumbent(s)? 
 
Answer  See the answer to question 17.  

40.    Question  
What has been the historical rate of return or liquidation rate provided by any incumbent(s), and/or what is 
anticipated or expected as a result of this procurement? 
 
Answer   See answers to questions 7 and 19.  
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41.    Question  
If applicable, will accounts held by any incumbent(s) or any backlog be moved to any new vendor(s) as a 
one-time placement at contract start up?  
 
Answer   No, accounts currently with incumbents are expected to remain with that incumbent. 

42.  5 1.1 Question  
What are MSF’s recovery goals? 
 
Answer   See Section 3 of the RFP. 

43.  5 1.1 Question  
What is the historical rate of recovery? 
 
Answer   See the answer to question 7 and 19. 

 
44.  5 1.1 Question  

Can MSF provide an estimation of how many post-judgment debts may be referred as a result of this 
contract? 
 
Answer  Very few placements for post judgment debt are anticipated.  

45.  5 1.1 Question  
What are the State’s liquidation expectations on the accounts? 
 
Answer   See the answer to question 7 and 19. 

46.  12 3.0.2 Question  
The RFP jumps from 3.0.1 to 3.0.3, is a paragraph missing from the RFP or is it just a typo? 
 
Answer  There is not a missing paragraph, it was an error in the numbering on the RFP. 

47.  16 4.3 Question  
Will detailed summary biographies be acceptable in lieu of resumes? 
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Answer  Yes 

48.  17 5.1 Question  
What are the current fees/rates being charged for collection and litigation services? 
 
Answer  See the answer to question 16.  

 


